MIN 2023-9941 Page 1 of 9

Meeting Minutes

Village of Downers Grove - Council Meeting

Council Chambers October 24, 2023 07:00 PM

1. Call to Order

Mayor Barnett called to order the Village Council meeting at 7:00 p.m. and led those in the room in the Pledge of
Allegiance to the Flag. He explained the protocol for the meeting and the guidelines to submit public comment.

2. Roll Call

Council Attendance (Present): Mayor Barnett, Commissioner Hosé, Commissioner Sadowski-Fugitt,
Commissioner Gilmartin, Commissioner Glover, Commissioner Tully, Commissioner Davenport

Council Attendance (Not Present): None

Non-Voting: Village Manager Dave Fieldman, Village Attorney Enza Petrarca, and Village Clerk Rosa Berardi

3. Minutes of Council Meetings
MIN 2023-10055 - A. Minutes: Village Council Meeting Minutes — October 17, 2023

MOTION: To adopt the meeting minutes of the October 17, 2023, Village Council Meeting, as presented.
RESULT: Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.

MOTIONED TO APPROVE: Commissioner Hosé

SECONDED BY: Commissioner Sadowski-Fugitt

AYES: Commissioners Hosé, Sadowski-Fugitt, Davenport, Tully, Glover, Gilmartin, Mayor Barnett

NAYES': None

4.Public Comments

Mayor Barnett reviewed the protocol for public comment during the meeting and the methods in which the public
may use to contact the Village Council.

Francis, resident, asked the Council what the Downers Grove brand is.

Janet Whittingham, resident, spoke of concerns with public awareness of the Council’s activities. She suggested the
Council use additional methods to communicate with the residents, in addition to current methods such as Coffee with

Council.

5. Consent Agenda

RES 2023-10063 — A. Resolution: Approve an Agreement with ABC Automotive Electronics for Vehicle Upfitting
Services RES 2023-62

1



MIN 2023-9941 Page 2 of 9

Council Minutes Village of Downers Grove October 24, 2023

Summary: This resolution approves an agreement with ABC Automotive Electronics for vehicle upfitting services for
a total not to exceed amount of $55,921.

RESOLUTION 2023-62
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT WITH ABC AUTOMOTIVE
ELECTRONICS FOR VEHICLE UPFITTING SERVICES

MOTION: To adopt the consent agenda, as presented.

RESULT: Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.

MOTIONED TO APPROVE: Commissioner Hosé

SECONDED BY: Commissioner Sadowski-Fugitt

AYES: Commissioners Hosé, Sadowski-Fugitt, Davenport, Tully, Glover, Gilmartin, Mayor Barnett
NAYES: None

6. Active Agenda
ORD 2023-10057 — A. Ordinance: Establishing Video Gaming Regulations

Summary: This ordinance establishes video gaming regulations, including revisions to sections of the municipal code
and to direct staff to place a resolution on an upcoming agenda regarding the placement of a video gaming referendum
question on the November 5, 2024 General Election.

MOTION: To adopt AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING VIDEO GAMING REGULATIONS WHICH
INCLUDES REVISIONS TO THE FOLLOWING SECTIONS: 3.15, 19. 20 & 21 AND TO DIRECT
STAFF TO PLACE A RESOLUTION ON AN UPCOMING AGENDA REGARDING THE PLACEMENT
OF A VIDEO GAMING REFERENDUM QUESTION ON THE NOVEMBER 5, 2024 GENERAL
ELECTION?, as presented. ORDINANCE 6003

RESULT: Motion carried unanimously by roll call.

MOTIONED TO APPROVE: Commissioner Tully

SECONDED BY: Commissioner Sadowski-Fugitt

AYES: Commissioners Tully, Sadowski-Fugitt, Davenport, Glover, Gilmartin, Hosé, Mayor Barnett
NAYES: None

Public Comment

Victoria, co-owner Brian’s American Grill, spoke in favor of video gaming and about a petition that was sent to the
Council with the signatures of over 250 residents and 40 businesses that are in support of Video Gaming. She said
she is opposed to putting this to referendum.

Rich Mathews, resident, spoke in favor of video gaming and stated that he thinks it is hypocritical for the Council to
allow alcohol sales in Downers Grove and not allow video Gaming.

Bob Taft, owner Q Pub and Grill, spoke in favor of video gaming and noted that all the Council members should
support video gaming since they stated they supported it during their election campaigns.

Brad Whittaker, resident and chairman of the Chamber 630 Board, spoke in favor of video gaming and requested the
Council allow the Village restaurants to compete with other establishments by allowing video gaming.

Jake, staff member of Q Pub and Grill in Downers Grove, spoke in favor of video gaming and said of all of the Q Pub
locations, the Downers Grove location is the least profitable because the other locations have video gaming.

Anita, Event coordinator for the Q Pub Group’s 4 locations, spoke in favor of video gaming and sated the Downers



MIN 2023-9941 Page 3 of 9

Council Minutes Village of Downers Grove October 24, 2023

Grove location is the least booked because of the lack of video gaming. She also spoke about how she personally
likes to video game in her free time.

Jim Devitt, resident, spoke in favor of video gaming and also gave statistics related to alcohol and video gaming
addiction — stating that liquor addiction issues are far worse than video gaming. He requested that the Council vote in
favor of video gaming to provide the Village with an addition revenue stream.

Charles Cuccia, resident, spoke in favor of video gaming and during a conversation he had with a restaurant owner, at
an establishment that has video gaming (outside of the Village), the owner told him he has never had issues related to
the video gaming. Mr. Cuccia requested that the Council allow video gaming to provide a revenue stream that
restaurant owners could use toward business improvements.

Carrie Swenson, resident, spoke against video gaming and requested it be put to referendum. She stated that she does
not agree with comparing video gaming to things like vape shops and that she did not vote for the Council members
based on their stance on video gaming.

Dr. Jamie Moss, owner of a business across from Q Pub and Grill, spoke against video gaming and about how serious
gambling addiction issues can be.

Jen McNolt, resident, spoke in favor of video gaming in Downers Grove, outside of the downtown area. She also
stated that Downers Grove has evolved over time and that people should have the choice to video game if they want
to.

Sue Cuccia, resident, spoke in favor of video gaming for small businesses, thanked the Council for being thoughtful
throughout this process, and stated that if allowed, restaurants can use the revenue stream toward business
improvements. She also stated that if the vote is put to referendum, she thinks that the public needs to be educated or
they may vote no because they may not understand what they are voting for.

Charlie Ecker, resident, spoke against video gaming and said that after owning a small business in Downers Grove, he
believes that restaurant owners should learn to compete with other establishments in creative ways. He also said he
does not want video gaming to affect the brand of Downers Grove.

Tim McCahill, resident, spoke against video gaming, said he would not have chosen to move to Downers Grove if
video gaming was allowed at the time and he fears if it is allowed, it will makes its way to the downtown area. He
requested it be put to referendum.

Tim Sullivan, resident, spoke against video gaming and stated that he believes video gaming has affected Lemont and
Westmont’s downtown areas since allowing it there. He also said he thinks if it is allowed it will affect the brand of
Downers Grove and he thinks it will make its way into the downtown area.

An unnamed resident, spoke in favor of video gaming and said he thinks it should be allowed in the Village and that
people should have the choice to videogame if they would like to. He said he has never been forced to video game
when he has been in establishments that offer it.

Tom Chlystek, former Alderman of the City of Darien, spoke against video gaming stating that he voted in favor of it
while serving for the Darien and regrets doing so. He said that more licenses were allowed than originally agreed
upon, the charm of Darien was lost, and by allowing video gaming they were not able to attract businesses that may
have otherwise been drawn to Darien.

Bonnie Summers, resident, spoke against video gaming and said that elected officials are allowed to change their
opinions. She also said that her opinion on video gaming has changed and because there is no real data on the subject,



MIN 2023-9941 Page 4 of 9

Council Minutes Village of Downers Grove October 24, 2023
she would like this to be put to referendum.

Caroline Shields, resident, spoke against video gaming and said if it is allowed, it will change the dynamics of the
town. She asked that it be put to referendum.

Nancy Sullivan, resident, spoke against video gaming and thinks that communication to the residents about this topic
has been poor. She requested it be put to referendum.

Angie Costello, works in gaming, spoke in favor of video gaming and stated that it supports small businesses and it’s
revenue stream will help the community.

Scott Richards, residents, spoke against video gaming and said he thinks it should be put to referendum. He does not
think there should be such urgency for the Council to vote on it.

Jim Weyrick, owner of Downers Sand Club, spoke in favor of video gaming, said there are ways to allow it so that it
is tasteful and controlled, he stressed that small businesses need the revenue, and that his business has dropped 50
percent since COVID hit. He also requested the Council vote yes for it and then the Council should keep control over
it, in an attempt to maintain the integrity of the town.

Danielle Bergandine, resident, spoke against video gaming and stated that the amount of revenue it will provide is
negligible. She said she wants to keep Downers Grove family friendly.

Marshall Schmidt, resident, spoke against video gaming and stated that the Council needs to represent both the
interest of the residents and the businesses. He requested that the Council put this to referendum because this is a
decision that can affect the character of the Village.

Janet Whittingham, resident, spoke against video gaming and if this passes, she thinks that the Village will eventually
allow additional licenses and also will allow it in the downtown. She said she believes allowing video gaming will
affect retailers from coming to the Village.

Andrew Bucas, owner Grand Dukes Restaurant, spoke in support of video gaming and explained that the costs
associated with operating his restaurant have gone up over the last 5 years that it has been in the Village. He said he
thinks that having the revenue from video gaming would assist with restaurant operations.

Marsha, resident, spoke in favor of video gaming, stated that she believes it would help small businesses and noted
that when visiting establishments outside of the Village that allow video gaming, it has always been secluded. She
requested that the Council vote yes.

Samantha Schroeder, read the statement of another resident that is against video gaming and wants to maintain the
integrity of the Village. She said though video gaming may attract some patrons, many others may choose not to
patronize certain establishments because they offer video gaming at their locations. She requested the Council vote
no.

Tracy Vanhoutan, resident, spoke against video gaming and cited data about the value of homes in municipalities that
do allow video gaming versus towns that allow it. He requested this be put to referendum if not voted down.

Laura, resident, spoke against video gaming, does not believe it would provide enough revenue to make it worth
allowing it in the Village, and thinks that the Village will allow more licenses at a later time. She encouraged the
Council put this to referendum.

Joyce Economides, resident, spoke against video gaming and noted that there is only a small percentage of restaurants
that are eligible and could actually accommodate the space required to allow for both video gaming and dining in.



MIN 2023-9941 Page 5 of 9

Council Minutes Village of Downers Grove October 24, 2023
She spoke about video gaming addiction and asked that this be put to referendum.

Laurie Sievers, resident, spoke against video gaming and stated that she loves to gamble but goes to casinos to do so.
She also stated that the EDC does not support it and requested that the Council vote no or put this to referendum.

Will Kupisch, coach at Downers Grove North High, said if the Village allows video gaming there should not be a
limit to the number of licenses issued — all establishments that want to have it should be allowed to have it. He said he

wants the Village to be a model town no matter what the decision is.

Steve Behller, resident, spoke against video gaming and does not believe it is right for Downers Grove. He asked that
it be put to referendum.

Resident, not on either side of this topic, but requested it be put to referendum to let the people vote.

Francis, resident, said this is Downers Grove and he does not want it to be compared to other municipalities.
Shane McMahon requested the vote be put referendum.

Tori Johnson, with the Tivoli, spoke in favor video gaming and wants to offer it to people that patronize the Tivoli.

Leonard Ververs, resident, spoke about the Council being voted in by the people, to vote for the people. He said he
thinks the Council should vote on this and this should not be put to referendum.

Tom Schroeder, Forest Avenue, spoke against video gaming and about the affects video gaming has had on the town
of Decatur, IL since allowing it. He said he thinks that the Village will eventually offer more than 10 licenses and if
businesses are looking for extra revenue, they should find ways to reinvent themselves.

The Mayor called for a five-minute break.

Village Council Comments/Questions

Commissioner Tully reread the motion that was made before the public comment. He thanked all of the
residents that commented at the meetings, sent emails, etc. He said he appreciates serving for an engaged
community. He explained that this journey started with listening to the residents and constituents — this is
something the Council has does on some many other topics and issues. He further noted that the Chamber
of Commerce has been asking for this topic to be considered for years. The Commissioner stated that the
topic of video gaming was taken up in 2021 and it was not voted on — it was tabled. He said when the
request was made to consider the topic again he wanted to accommodate the request in a manner that would
address the concerns of the neighborhood. He further stated that when running to return to a seat on the
Council, with regard to video gaming, he stated that he would explore any opportunities to embrace the ask
of the community in a way that addressed the objections that had been raised in 2021 and continue to be
raised. This is how the Council and Village staff came up with the compromise ordinance, by listening to
the residents. The Commissioner continued by stating that the ordinance is uniquely Downers Grove and no
other community has anything like it. He said that a limited compromise was the only way he could
support this. He compared this to food trucks, sidewalk cafes and historic preservation — initially they
were met with a lot of opposition, but then the Council and staff found a way that people could live with
and now all three things are successful. Commissioner Tully reiterated that he believes this ordinance
strikes a balance for both sides. He expressed that this was not considered because of a political platform



MIN 2023-9941 Page 6 of 9

Council Minutes Village of Downers Grove October 24, 2023

that any of the Council members ran on — this topic was considered because it was an ask from the public.
He stated that he thinks the Council members were voted in because of their experience, their perspective
and their ability to take a situation and try to come to a solution that is in the best interest of the community.
The Commissioner stated that he explained to many objectors how the ordinance addressed their concerns
and though they stated that he made a good case, it did not feel right to them. It came down to their feelings
about it and the Commissioner said that he cannot legislate based on feelings. He then spoke about the
interest in a citizen binding referendum that would require the gathering of thousands of signatures, which
he said he could not support because it could ultimately allow gaming everywhere in town and without the
careful nuances and balance that the ordinance on the table had. He spoke of the opportunity to put this to
an advisory referendum and said the motion that was made included the following important amendments to
the ordinance: 1) “If approved by Council, the ordinance would not go into effect until January 1, 2025”;
and 2) “At an upcoming Village Council meeting, the Village Council shall consider a resolution placing an
advisory referendum question regarding the desirability of video gaming, as described by the ordinance, on
the ballot for the General Election to be held on November 5, 2024”’; and 3) “The Village Council shall
consider the results of the advisory referendum with respect to any future action concerning the ordinance.”
The Commissioner stated that he would listen to the results of the referendum. He also stated that the
Village Council shall consider the results of the advisory referendum with respect to any future action
concerning the ordinance. The referendum will be voted on (by the public) during the General Election
because the Council believes that it is likely have a higher attendance than the Consolidated Election.
Commissioner Tully asked that his colleagues support this path that came about as a result of listening to
one another. He asked that after getting the results of an advisory referendum, together they could listen to
one another again, one way or the other. He said he hoped they could move forward so that they could
resolve this issue and move on to bigger challenges/big ticket items.

Commissioner Sadowski-Fugitt said she agreed with what Commissioner Tully said about not being able to
legislate based on feelings. She seconded the motion Commissioner Tully made because she is in favor of
the compromise ordinance and to unite as one board, stating that it makes the community stronger. She said
was the one that requested that it be put to referendum on the November ballot — because it has the greatest
percentage of voter turnout (and it is a Presidential Election). Commissioner Sadowski-Fugitt said she
thinks this is the right thing to do because it will involve as much of the community as possible. She
thanked Commissioner Tully for explaining his change in opinion on this topic.

Commissioner Hosé thanked all the residents that have communicated with the Council. He said that based
on the comments he made at previous meetings, it is no surprise that he was against video gaming. He
noted that he and Commissioner Tully spoke and both of them had the same idea in mind — they agreed that
the ordinance, as amended, is a compromise. Commissioner Hos¢ said he is in favor of putting this to
referendum and allowing the people to speak. He pointed out that when voting at the General Election, his
vote will be against video gaming. The Commissioner reiterated that putting this on the ballot is the way to

go.

Commissioner Glover stated he agrees with most of what was said by Commissioners Tully and Sadowski-
Fugitt. He said he thinks the revised ordinance is well-written and expresses the concerns of the Council and
the residents. He explained that during his time on the council he has changed his opinion on things, which
is something he is allowed to do. Commissioner Glover stated he fears that by putting this to referendum,
some voters may not have the knowledge of all the review and consideration the Council has had on this
topic, which may cause them to vote against it. He said for that reason, he does not have any interest in
putting this to referendum. The Commissioner said he would prefer making a decision on video gaming at



MIN 2023-9941 Page 7 of 9

Council Minutes Village of Downers Grove October 24, 2023

this meeting.

Commissioner Davenport said that it was wrong of him not be open to the idea of putting this to referendum
during past meetings. He stated that he does not believe this will be as impactful with only 10 licenses, but
he understands how important this is to some of his peers. Commissioner Davenport he agrees that this
could evolve to 50 licenses ten years from now — stating if it does, he hopes that would be the result of a
positive experience. Commissioner Davenport noted that he received hundreds of emails against video
gaming, a few for it, and a petition showing 250 residents and 40 businesses in favor of video gaming. He
said he thinks there is enough input to put this to referendum in November 2024. He noted that Downers
Grove is keeping the Village unique with this compromise ordinance which is very different than what other
municipalities have put forth. The Commissioner said he does not believe there is data to support property
values before and after the allowance of video gaming. He explained that the EDC did not endorse this
simply because it did not meet the criteria to support it. Commissioner Davenport said he supports this
ordinance because it is so limiting. He thanked the residents for their input and shares the interest to put this
to referendum as read in the motion. He also noted that he will be respectful of the result and wants to
allow the process to play out.

Commissioner Gilmartin thanked the residents and business owners for their feedback. He noted that when
the issue is over, he encourages all to continue to be involved. He spoke about the other focuses of the
Council and invited the residents to continue to be involved. Commissioner Gilmartin stated that he does
not support video gaming, but supports this ordinance and giving the public the opportunity to vote via the
referendum. He said that he believes the ordinance as written originally was written well, but he believes the
revised ordinance is more of a compromise. Commissioner Gilmartin said that he believes the Council has
listened to the public and he looks forward to working on the language of the referendum, as well as turning
the Council’s focus to other priority action items.

Commissioner Tully said that once the compromise was out there, he was hearing from businesses that took
issue with the compromise.

Mayor Barnett said that he agrees with most of what was said by the Council this during this meeting. He
noted that there have been 500 pieces of input (via email, petition, etc.) and full houses each of the three the
Council meetings this was discussed. He referenced elections and campaigning. He said that the members
of the Council have the right to change their minds — that he is grateful that he and his colleagues are willing
to listen and reconsider things, always working in the best interest of the people and eachother. The Mayor
said he agrees with putting this to referendum to allow the residents to vote. This is similar what was done
with stormwater. He said this is a well-written ordinance and he is proud of his colleagues.

ORD 2023-10050 — B. Ordinance: Amending Certain Zoning Ordinance Provisions

Summary: This ordinance amends certain Zoning Ordinance provisions in Section 1, 28.5.050(k)(1); Section 2,
287.7.060; Section 3, 287.7.090; Section 4, 28.7.130(c); Section 5, 28.10.010; Section 6, 28.11.030(f)(2)(b); Section
7, 28.11.040(e)(1)(b); Section 8, 2812.050(1)(4); Section 9, 28.14.100(b); Section 10, 28.15.080; Section 11; Section
12.

MOTION: To adopt AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CERTAIN ZONING ORDIDANCE PROVISIONS,
as presented. ORDINANCE 6004

RESULT: Motion carried unanimously by roll call.

MOTIONED TO APPROVE: Commissioner Hosé




MIN 2023-9941 Page 8 of 9

Council Minutes Village of Downers Grove October 24, 2023
SECONDED BY: Commissioner Sadowski-Fugitt
AYES: Commissioners Hosé, Sadowski-Fugitt, Davenport, Glover, Gilmartin, Tully, Mayor Barnett
NAYES: None

Village Council Comments/Questions

Mayor Barnett stated that this ordinance is a clean-up of the Zoning Ordinance and it is something that is done
periodically based on experiences. This amendment is regarding what does and does not define a total remodel or
rebuild.

7. First Reading

ORD 2023-10062 — A. Ordinance: Authorizing a Special Use to Establish an Accessory Structure Before the
Principal Structure is Established at 5140 Carpenter Street

Community Development Director Stan Popovich presented this item via PowerPoint. He explained that this special
use involves the construction of an accessory structure (garage and driveway) prior to the construction of the primary
structure. He noted that the Plan Commission recommended approval for the petition.

8.Manager’s Report

Deputy Village Manager Mike Baker gave an update on the Civic Center project. He explained the project remains on
schedule and under budget. He shared a video that showed the most recent construction completed.

9. Attorney’s Report
Pursuant to Section 2.5 of the Downers Grove Municipal Code, Village Attorney Enza Petrarca presented the
following for Village Council consideration:

1. An ordinance authorizing a special use to establish an accessory structure before the principal
structure is established at 5140 Carpenter Street.

10. Mayor’s Report

Mayor Barnett stated that he attended a ribbon cutting ceremony at District 99’s Transition Center. He said that
District 99 offers continuing education at this location to approximately 100 students with special needs through this
transition program. He further explained that the facility does a lot of good and explained that businesses can get
involved by partnering with District 99 to give the students an opportunity to work outside of school. He also
explained that they have micro businesses that are offered to the public, such as shredding services, and they make
and sell dog treats. He said there is more information available online.

11. Council Member Reports

Commissioner Tully said that on Wednesday, November 1%, The Hundred Club of DuPage County is hosting their
40" Annual Valor Awards Dinner at the Double Tree Hotel. He explained this organization supports the families of
first responders that have been killed and it honors acts of bravery by first responders. He said that
hundredclubofdupage.org has more information. Commissioner Tully encouraged residents to also attend the Indian
Boundary YMCA'’s fundraiser on Thursday, November 2" at Cadence in Downers Grove. He also noted that Hope’s
Front Door would be hosting a Glitz and Games fundraising event on Friday, November 3" at Seven Bridges.

Commissioner Tully also spoke about communication complaints made by the public. He said he believes that the
Village has gotten better and better with this. He stated that he thinks that residents that say they do not have
knowledge of what is happening are not paying attention, because there is a lot of information out there. The



MIN 2023-9941 Page 9 of 9

Council Minutes Village of Downers Grove October 24, 2023

Commissioner further stated that Village staff has been exceptional at communicating via multiple media channels
and that the Council is always looking for better ways to communicate with the constituents.

Commissioner Gilmartin spoke about the Environmental Sustainability Coordinator position that is available within
the Village and suggested anyone interested visit downers.us for information about the job opening.

Commissioner Davenport thanked the Mayor for attending the ribbon cutting ceremony for District 99. He said the
facility the Mayor spoke of is unique in what it accomplishes for special needs kids after high school.

Commissioner Glover said he was a prior employment partner of the District 99 program. He further stated that one
of his favorite employees of ten years was recruited through it .

Commissioner Sadowski-Fugitt spoke about her disappointment in the harassment that library staff members have
faced. She said she saw an anti-semitic hate symbol carved in some playground equipment last week and asked that
anyone that may have any knowledge of this action, please contact the Downers Grove Police. Commissioner
Sadowski-Fugitt said she believes the community is full of kind people but she has seen a rise in bullying on social
media. She asked all to model kind behavior for our youth. She stated that her heart goes out to those affected by the
recent humanitarian crises.

12, Adjournment
The Mayor asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting into an executive session.

MOTION: To adjourn the October 24, 2023 Village Council Meeting into Closed Session Pursuant to
Section 2(C)(2) of the Illinois Open Meetings Act to Consider Collective Negotiating Matters between the
Village and its Employees or Their Representatives.

RESULT: Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.

MOTIONED TO APPROVE: Commissioner Hosé

SECONDED BY: Commissioner Sadowski-Fugitt

AYES: Commissioners Hosé, Sadowski-Fugitt, Davenport, Tully, Glover, Gilmartin, Mayor Barnett
NAYES: None

Mayor Barnett declared the motion carried by voice vote and the meeting adjourned into executive session at
10:46 pm.
Respectfully Submitted,

Rosa Berardi
Village Clerk





